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Subpart B—Rules of Procedure

COMPLAINTS, INVESTIGATIONS, FINDINGS
AND PRELIMINARY ORDERS

§1978.100 Purpose and scope.

(a) This subpart implements the pro-
cedural aspects of section 405 of the
Surface Transportation Assistance Act
of 1982, 49 U.S.C. 2305, which provides
for employee protection from discrimi-
nation because the employee has en-
gaged in protected activity pertaining
to commercial motor vehicle safety
and health matters.

(b) Procedures are established by this
subpart pursuant to the statutory pro-
vision set forth above for the expedi-
tious handling of complaints of dis-
crimination made by employees, or
persons acting on their behalf. These
rules, together with those rules set
forth at 29 CFR part 18, set forth the
procedures for submission of com-
plaints under section 405, investiga-
tions, issuance of findings and prelimi-
nary orders, objections thereto, litiga-
tion before administrative law judges,
post-hearing administrative review,
withdrawals and settlements, judicial
review and enforcement, and deferral
to other forums.

§1978.101 Definitions.

(a) Act means the Surface Transpor-
tation Assistance Act of 1982 (STAA)
(49 U.S.C. 2301 et seq.).

(b) Secretary means Secretary of
Labor or persons to whom authority
under the Act has been delegated.

(c) Assistant Secretary means the As-
sistant Secretary of Labor for Occupa-
tional Safety and Health or the person

§1978.102

or persons to whom he or she delegates
authority under the Act.

(d) Employee means (1) a driver of a
commercial motor vehicle (including
an independent contractor while in the
course of personally operating a com-
mercial motor vehicle); (2) a mechanic;
(3) a freight handler; or (4) any indi-
vidual other than an employer; who is
employed by a commercial motor car-
rier and who in the course of his em-
ployment directly affects commercial
motor vehicle safety, but such term
does not include an employee of the
United States, any State, or a political
subdivision of a State who is acting
within the course of such employment.

(e) Commercial motor carrier means a
person who meets the definition of
motor carrier found at 49 U.S.C. 10102(13)
(Supp. 1987) and motor private carrier
found at 49 U.S.C. 10102(16) (Supp. 1987).

(f) OSHA means the Occupational
Safety and Health Administration.

(g) Complainant means the employee
who filed a section 405 complaint or on
whose behalf a complaint was filed.

(h) Named person means the person al-
leged to have violated section 405.

(i) Person means one or more individ-
uals, partnerships, associations, cor-
porations, business trusts, legal rep-
resentatives or any group of persons.

§1978.102 Filing of discrimination

complaint.

(a) Who may file. An employee may
file, or have filed by any person on the
employee’s behalf, a complaint alleging
a violation of section 405.

(b) Nature of filing. No particular
form of complaint is required.

(c) Place of filing. The complaint
should be filed with the OSHA Area Di-
rector responsible for enforcement ac-
tivities in the geographical area where
the employee resides or was employed,
but filing with any OSHA officer or em-
ployee is sufficient. Addresses and tele-
phone numbers for these officials are
set forth in local directories.

(d) Time for filing. (1) Section 405(c)(1)
provides that an employee who believes
that he has been discriminated against
in violation of section 405 (a) or (b)
‘% % % may, within one hundred and
eighty days after such alleged violation
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